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COMPANY PROFILE

State Trading Corporation of Bhutan Limited (STCBL) was established in 1968 by the Royal
Government of Bhutan (RGoB) under the administrative control of the Ministry of Trade and
Industry and was declared as an autonomous body in 1984.

The company was registered as a limited company under the Companies Act of the Kingdom of
Bhutan from March 5, 1996. The Royal Government of Bhutan (Druk Holding and Investments)
holds 51% of share and it is the only state owned enterprise into trading. The company is overseen
by a Board of Directors whose members are a mix of private and public sector professionals.

VISION

o ® ) “The first choice for quality
. and trust’
° MISSION
® 1. Creating value by leveraging on ’
: technology and people :
o 2. Building trust by providing genuine  *

® products and services to the customers
{
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RESPECT
Feeling of appreciation and understanding for co-worker’s
ability, qualities, or achievements resulting in an atmosphere
INTEGRITY where the freedom of being honest, candid and content are

Being honest and having strong present throughout the workplace.

moral principles; moral upright-
ness, not compromising the right
choice for the easy choice.

LOYALTY

A strong feeling of support and
allegiance to STCBL and what it
stands for.

PRODUCTIVITY
The ability to maximize the
effective usage of time and effort
on achieve ideal results in any
endeavour.

ACCOUNTABILITY
Deep comprehension and appreciation for one’s
personal duties and responsibilities, taking recog-
nition of one’s role regardless of positive or negative
outcomes.
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Key Financial highlights (Past 5 Years):
Particulars Year Growth
2023 2019 Absolute %
Net worth (Nu. Millions) 1,471.99 1,396.87 75.12 5.38%
Revenue (Nu. Millions) 3,423.44 2,174.50 1,248.94 57.44%
Profit (Nu. Millions) 12.70 44.55 (31.85) ~71.49%
Fixed Assets (Nu. Millions) 506.80 300.38 206.42 68.72%
Resrve and Surplus (Nu. Millions) 333.95 301.15 32.80 10.89%
Earning per share (Nu. Millions) 0.71 2.48 (1.77) -71.37%

STCBL

Mr. Chimmi Tsherin
Chairman
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chimme Tshering is the Director General of Department of Industry
under Ministry of Industry, Commerce and Employment. He is the
current Chairman of STCBL Board. He earned his Master’s Degree in
Agricultural Economics from Michigen State Univeristy, USA.

He served as the Director of National Statistics Bureau prior to his ap-
pointment as Director General of Department of Industry.

Cheki Dorji is the President of College of Science and Technology,

Royal University of Bhutan (RUB). He also has served as Site Engi-
neer, Head of Department of Civil Engineering, Controller of Exam,
Coordinator of Research at College of Science and Technology. He was
an Editorial member, Bhutan Journal of Research and Development
(BJRD) and member of Academic Planning and Resource Commit-
tee (APRC), RUB. He is also the member of University Council (UC),
member of Academic Board (AB) and member of Research and In-
novation Committee (RIC), RUB. He received B.Tech in Civil Engi-
neering from Regional Engineering College, Warangle (Currently NIT
Warangle), India in 1998. He also received Masters in Infrastructure
Planning and Management in 2003 and Doctoral Degree in Civil En-
gineering in 2009 from Yokohama National University, Japan.

Mr. Singye N Dorji
Non-independent,
Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Dr. Cheki Dorji

Executive Director)

Singye N Dorji is the Joint Managing Director of RSA Pvt Ltd. He be-
gan his career in 2001 with the Ministry of Education as an education
planner in the Policy and Planning Division. He received a Master’s
Degree in Professional Studies from Cornell University, USA, a PG Di-
ploma in Development Management from the Royal Institute of Man-
agement, Thimphu and a Diploma in Project Management from Tiet-
gen Business College, Nordic Agriculture Academy Odense, Denmark.
He is currently the Chairman of the SAARC Young Entrepreneurs’
Forum and preseident of Association of Bhutanese Industries. He is
also a member of the Private Sector Development Committee (PSDC),
Bhutan. He served as a member of the National Task Force for the de-
velopment of Bhutan’s 21st Century Economic Roadmap.

SIS

Non-Independent, Non



Mr. Chencho Tshering
Independent,
Non-Executive

STCBL

Chencho Tshering is the Chief Executive Officer of Bhutan Yuden
Travels. He started his career as a reporter for Kuensel in 1990. He
climbed his way to be appointed as the Managing Director of Kuensel
Corporation Limited in April 2009. He was also the First Chairman of
the Bhutan Media Foundation (BMF) from 2011 to 2013.

In addition to being the Chairman of BMF, he also served as the Dep-
uty Chairman of South Asia Foundation (SAF) and Board Director of
Kidu Foundation, Lhaksam and Menjong Diagnostic Centre. After his
retirement from Kuensel in 2014 he started his own tour company and
is presently in the business of tourism and hospitality.

Kinga Lotey is the Associate Director of the Corporate Services Divi-
sion at Druk Holding and Investments Ltd. He received his Master’s
Degree in Human Resource Management from Monash University,
Australia, and Bachelor’s Degree in Science from Sherubtse College.
Prior to joining DHI, he served in the Royal Civil Service Commis-
sion. He has more than 18 years of experience in aligning business
needs with human capital strategy through goal-focused personnel
management. He also served on the Board of Penden Cement Author-
ity Limited, Dungsam Polymers Limited and Wood Craft Centre Lim-
ited before joining STCB as the DHI Nominee Board Director

r. Kinga Lotey
on-independent,
Non-Executive Director

STCBL

STCBL MANAGEMENT TEAM

Tshering Wangchuk
Chief Executive Officer

9%

Chencho Ugyen Chada

Mr. Kinga Thinley

Kinga Thinley is the General Manager of General Insurance Depart-
ment under Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan Limited (RICBL).
He joined RICBL in 2014 as the General Manager for Phuentsholing
Main Branch. Prior to Joining RICBL, he led the Credit and Inter-
nal Audit Departments in National Pension and Provident Fund. He
earned his Master of Business Administration in International Business
from Univerisyt of Thai Chamber of Commerce in Bangkok, Thailand.

Non-independent,
Non-Executive Director

Tshering Wangchuk is the Chief Executive Officer of the STCBL. He
is the only Bhutanese to have headed print, radio and television hav-
ing been the co-founding CEO of Business Bhutan newspaper and the
CEO of the national television (Bhuatn Broadcasting Service) and ra-
dio. He graduated from Sherubtse College in 1993 and started his ca-
reer in the civil service in 1994.

He published his book ‘A Thousand Footprints” in 2021, Yangchen in
2022 and has worked on other publications such as A King of Destiny,
100 Years of Monarchy and Jewel in the Crown. Apart from writing, he
enjoys reading and sports.

r. Tshering Wangchuk
on-independent,
Executive Director

hief Financial Officef Regional Head

LR WEIE)

Dechen Wangdi
Dy. General Manager
Toyota Division

RN

Pem Chogay
Dy. General Manager
Tata Division

JB28

Leki Dhendup
hief Internal Auditor
Internal Audit Unit

WEUR))

Tashi Pemo
Dy. General Manager
Eicher Division

J28
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, the Management and
employees of State Trading Corporation of Bhutan
Limited, I am pleased to present the Directors’ Report
for the year 2023.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

I would like to report that business diversification has
become crucial for the company and the company has
expanded the Fuel Retail Outlet network to Tsirang,
Samtse and Sarpang Dzongkhags during the year. The
company has also set up a Regional Office at Gelephu
and opended a Bhutanese product Shop at Dhakha in
Bangladesh.

The Extension of moratorium on import of vehicle
and the upgrade in vehicle emission standards from
BS/Euro 4 to BS/Euro 6 have posed challenges to the
automobile business during the year. Nevertheless, with
the company’s petroleum business and diversification,
thr company remained afloat and profitable.

The growth prospects for 2024 continue to be
challenging given the current market uncertainites.
Despite the challenges, we affirm our commitment to
overcome the challenges and sustain consistent growth.

The company has plans to commission Fuel Retail
outlets at Bumthang, Nobding, Dagana, Nganglam and
Haa and start construction of the Regional Office in
Phuentsholing during the year

HR CAPACITY BUILDING

Our priority remains with the developement of new
skills

and reskilling of the employees at the individual and
organizational level.

During the year, company condcuted in-house training
on fire safety to all employees and Customer Relation
ship

Management training to 35 sales Executives. In addi-
tion,

10
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13 employees attaended training on BS6 motor engine,
service activation and development of soft skills at Tata

and Eicher Motors in India. Online trainings were also
organized and encouraged through Coursera and other
platforms as part of the overall learning and develop-
ment.

The company also developed succession planning and
employee HiPo program based on DHI guidelines

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

The company earned a revenue of Nu. 3,443.46 million
in

the year 2023 which was Nu. 212.2 million higher than
the revenue of Nu. 3,231.26 million earned during the
year 2022. With the total expenses of Nu. 3,423.44 mil-
lion incurred during the financial year, the company
registered a net profit of Nu. 12.70 million.

The revenue from automobile business was Nu. 748.59
million, petroleum business was Nu. 2,483.30 million
and Home-store and other business was Nu. 211.57
million. The share of revenue from the automobile
business has decreased from 45% to 22% while the rev-
enue from petroleum business increased from 49% to
72% compared to the the previous year.

The chart below illustrates the company’s portfolio with
its revenue share:

STCBL

The earnings per share decreased to Nu. 0.71 during the
year due to lower profitablity. However, the trade re-
ceivable turnover days reamined at decent 29 days ver-
sus the target of 45 days as per the company’s policy and
the inventory turnover ratio for the year was 7 or 52
days versus the target of 60 days.

Due to huge investments in Fuel Retail Outlet Con-
structions and operations, Fixed Assets increased by
Nu. 75.45 million to Nu. 506.80 million during the year.

PARTICULARS FY 2023 | FY 2022
Revenue 3,443.46 |3,231.26
Expenses 3,423.44 |3,151.91
Profit Before Tax 20.01 79.36
Profit After Tax 12.70 57.35
Earnings Per Share 0.71 3.19
Current Ratio 1.21 1.53
Trade Receivable Turnover days | 28.87 27.86
Inventory Turnover Ratio 7.89 7.90
Fixed Asset 506.80 |431.35
Capital Work in Progress 67.54 45.53

The company has achieved a score of 78.18% in the an-
nual company compact evaluation.

STATUTORY AUDIT REPORT

Ghosh and Associates was appointed as the statutory
auditors for the year by the Royal Audit Authority on
6th November 2023. The firm audited the accounts
from 27th Febraury 2024 to 8th March 2024in accor-
dance with international Standards on Auditing and
relevant provisions of the Companies Act of Bhutan
2016 and issued and unqualified report.

DIVIDEND

After viewing the financial performance of the
company, the board decided to issue bonus shares
at the ratio of 1:2

CORPORATE GOVERNACE

The best of corporate governance and management
practices are continuously adopted and implemented
with support extended from DHI. There are 7 Board

o,
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Directors are appointed by shareholders and represents
DHI, financial institutions, private shareholders and in-
dependent directors. In 2023, the Board met 8 times to
review company’s performance.

The following are the Board Committees:

1. Board Audit Committee comprised of 3 Directors
and the committee held 5 meetings during the year.

2. Board Tender Committee comprised of 3 Directors
the committee held 4 meetings during the year.

3. Board HR Committee comprised of 3 Directors.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The company supported a project to help a community
in Larsarp Village in Chukha by building 2 bed room
houses. The company has handed over 15 houses to the
community since 2021. During the year, the company
handed over the last 4 houses. For the 15 houses, the
total amount spent was Nu. 7.5 million.

The initiative to support employees of grade 15 and be-
low by providing their children with school uniforms,
shoes, bags and subsidized lunch to technician was
continued during the year.

CHALLENGES AND WAY FORWARD

The moratorium on import of vehicle will continue
during the year 2024 which will affect the core business
of the company. In addition to the moratorium on im-
port of vehicle, the restrcition on loans from the finan-
cial institutions, issues at borders of india and Bangla-
desh for our export business will be a challenging to us.
The other major challenge the company has is retaining
skilled and experienced employees leaving the company
for better opportunities. The company is optimistic that
the pay revision, succession planning through identifi-
cation of key & critical position and talent management
strategies will help retain employees.

The company has plans to commence operations of 5
additional fuel reatil outlets in Bumthang, Nobding,
Dagana, Nganglan and Haa and start construction of
another 2 fuel retail outlets in Mongar and either Thim-
phu or Paro. With the expansion of the fuel retail outlet
network, the company plans to take various businesses
of the company closer to the customers.

11
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board of Directors, Management and employees of the company, I would like to offer our deepest
gratitude to His Majesty the Druk Gyalpo and submit our prayers for the good health of His Majesty the Druk
Gyalpo and rededicate our service to the nation.

Our deepest appreciation to the Royal Government of Bhutan, Druk Holding and Investments, Ministry of In-
dustry, Commerce and Employment, Ministry of Finance, Bhutan Construction and Transport Authority, Royal
Securities Exchange of Bhutan and the Financial Institutions for the contibued guidance, support and assistamce.

Finally we would also like ti express our sincere appreciation to all the Shareholders and our valued customers for
your continued support and good wishes.

Tashi Delek!

l'lf ¢ LWW /

(Chimmi TsEe?lng)_
Chairman
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Best of corporate governance and management practices are adopted and implemented with the support extended
from DHI and the Corporarte Regulatory Authority of Bhutan, Ministry of Industry, Commerce and Employment.
The STCBL Board constitutes of seven Board Directors including the Chief Executive Officer. The Board provides
strategic guidance and monitors the performance of the company on a quarterly basis. In 2023, the Board met
eight times to review the Company’s performance and to provide necessary inputs. The Board Audit Committee
(BAC) convenes to study and resolve audit issues of the company. Board Level Committees are also formed for
tender awards, recruitment for executive category etc.

Board Directors

SINO. | NAME ADDRESS DATE OF APPOINTMENT [ STATUS
Director General,

1. Mr. Chimmi Tshering Ministry of Industry, 18th July 2022 Non-Independent
Commerce and Em-
ployement

2. Mr. Cheki Dorji President, CST 09th March 2021 Non-Independent
Associate Director,

3. Mr. Kinga Lotay Druk Holding and 29th March 2021 Non-Independent
Investments Ltd.

4. Mr. KingaThinley General Manager, 21st July 2022 Non-Independent
RICBL

5. Mr. Chencho Tshering CEO, Bhutan Yuden 14th March 2020 Independent
Tours and Travels

: Mr. Singay Namgyel Dorji | MD, DDPL Private Ltd. | 14th March 2020 Non-Independent

7. Mr. Tshering Wangchuk [ Chief Executive Office, [01st December 2021 By Default

STCBL
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Board Meetings

STCBL

Eight Board Meeting were held in 2023. The details of the Board Attendance are as follows:

STCBL

Board Meeting No.

Date

Members Present

Leave of Absence

Board Meeting No.

Date

Members Present

Leave of Absence

148

28th February 2023

. Chimmi Tshering

. Singay Namgyel Dorji
. Kinga Lotey

. Chencho Tshering

. Kinga Tshering

. Tshering Wangchuk

. Chencho

1. Cheki Dorji

153

15th October 2023

. Chimmi Tshering

. Singay Namgyel Dorji
. Kinga Lotey

. Chencho Tshering

. Cheki Dorji

. Kinga Tshering

. Tshering Wangchuk

. Chencho

None

149

23rd March 2023

. Chimmi Tshering

. Singay Namgyel Dorji
. Kinga Lotey

. Cheki Dorji

. Kinga Tshering

. Tshering Wangchuk

. Chencho

1. Chencho Tshering

154

17th November 2023

. Chimmi Tshering

. Singay Namgyel Dorji
. Kinga Lotey

. Chencho Tshering

. Cheki Dorji

. Kinga Tshering

. Tshering Wangchuk

. Chencho

None

150

28th April 2023

. Chimmi Tshering

. Singay Namgyel Dorji
. Kinga Lotey

. Cheki Dorji

. Kinga Tshering

. Tshering Wangchuk

. Chencho

1. Chencho Tshering

155

25th December 2023

O NN U W IO ONU R WD =100 QNG W -~

. Chimmi Tshering

. Singay Namgyel Dorji
. Kinga Lotey

. Chencho Tshering

. Cheki Dorji

. Kinga Tshering

. Tshering Wangchuk

. Chencho

None
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28th July 2023

. Chimmi Tshering

. Singay Namgyel Dorji
. Kinga Lotey

. Chencho Tshering

. Cheki Dorji

. Kinga Tshering

. Tshering Wangchuk

. Chencho

None

Board Committees

The Company had nine Board Level Committees for the year 2023 as follows:

1. Board Audit Committee

2. Board Level Tender Committee
3. Board Human Resource Committee

152

11th August 2023

O NN U WD =00 ONU b WD FINONU R WO FINONU R WD FIN NG W -~

. Chimmi Tshering

. Singay Namgyel Dorji
. Kinga Lotey

. Chencho Tshering

. Cheki Dorji

. Kinga Tshering

. Tshering Wangchuk

. Chencho

None

14

SINO. | Name of the committee [ Numbers Date Members Present Leave of Absece
meeting of meeting
conducted
25th Febru- | 1. Cheki Dorji Kinga Lotey
ary 2023 2. Kinga Lotey
3. Leki Dendup (CIA)
L. Board Audit > 17th March | 1. Kinga Thinley
Committee 2023 2. Cheki Dorji None
3. Kinga Lotey
4. Leki Dendup (CIA)
26th July 1. Kinga Thinley Kinga Lotey
2023 2. Cheki Dorji
3. Leki Dendup

15
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[SINO. [Name of the committee | Numbers Date Members Present Leave of Absece
meeting of meeting
conducted
19th October | 1. Kinga Thinley Kinga Lotey
2023 2. Cheki Dorji
3. Leki Dendup
Board Audit 5 29th Decem- | 1. Kinga Thinley None
Committee ber 2023 2. Cheki Dorji
3. Kinga Lotey
4. Leki Dendup (CIA)
30th March [ 1. Singye Namgyal Dorji | None
2023 2. Chencho Tshering
3. Tshering Wangchuk
4. Chencho (CFO)
5. Sugan Pradhan
15th June 1. Chencho Tshering Singye Namgyal
2023 2. Tshering Wangchuk Dorji
3. Chencho (CFO)
4. Sugan Pradhan
2. Board Ijevel Tender 4 11th August | 1. Singye Namgyal Dorji | None
Committee 2023 2. Chencho Tshering
3. Tshering Wangchuk
4. Chencho (CFO)
5. Sugan Pradhan
23th Novem- | 1. Singye Namgyal Dorji | None
ber 2023 2. Chencho Tshering
3. Tshering wangchuk
4. Chencho
5. Sugan Pradhan

Annual General Meeting

The 27th Annual General Meeting for the Company was held on 22nd March 2024 at Board Room,

Head Office, Thimphu. The AGM passed the following resolution:

« Approved the Audited Accounts for Financial Year Ended 2023 along with Auditors Report and
Director’s Report.
o The meeting decided to issue bonus shares at the ratio of 1:2
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AUDIT REPORT ON THE
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF STATE
TRADING
CORPORATION OF
BHUTAN LIMITED

PERIOD: 01/01/2023 to 31/12/2023
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GHOSH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
P-325 CIT Road, Kankurgachi, Kolkata-700054
CB-108 Salt Lake, Sector-1, Kolkata — 700 064
Contact: 033-23628870/23648215,
\ Mobile: 9748711022, 9433011022
Email: ghoshandassociatesca@gmail.com
ppghosh@ghoshandassociates.in

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
To the Members of the State Trading Corporation of Bhutan Limited:
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the State Trading Corporation of Bhutan
Limited, which comprise the statement of financial position as on 31 December 2023
and the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Bhutanese Accounting Standards (BAS).

N

¥ s
CNININA

QKRR Basis for Opinion
A

Independent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of this report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Bhutan and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw the attention of the shareholders in respect of the following observation;
i Unclaimed dividend of Nu 1,254,919.63 is appearing at the end of the year

Unclaimed dividend to the extent of Nu. 1,254,919.63 are appearing as on 31.12.2023 since 2015
onwards.

ii. Gratuity liability as on 315 December, 2023 was Nu 5,869,160.00 (Current) and Nu
26,917,095.64 (Non-Current) as per Report of Actuary whereas the balance as per
books of accounts are Nu. 3,849,220.49 (Current) and Nu. 9,765,785.50 (Non-
current), difference being Nu 19,171,250.64. However, the Investment in Fixed

3
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\\ GHOSH & ASSOCIATES

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 266 of the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016, we enclose the
Minimum Audit Examination and Reporting Requirements as Appendix-I with
statements on the matters specified therein to the extent applicable.

Further, as required by Section 265 of the Act, we report that:

a)  We have obtained all the information and explanation, except for the matters
referred to in Emphasis of Matter and Key Audit Matter Paragraph, which
to the best of our knowledge and beliefs were necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the company so far as appear from our examination of the books.

c) The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d) In our opinion, the company has complied with other legal and regulatory

requirements.
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For GHOSH & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 322016E
Place: Thimphu, Bhutan
Date:

CAP hosh, Partner . ‘ ‘ /O/
Membgrship No.: 055752
UDIN: QYO SEFERABRGI Y TOS L/L/é
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MINIMUM AUDIT EXAMINATION AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS FOR 2023

Our audit was carried out by applying the International Standards on Auditing (ISA) as
adopted and issued by the Accounting and Auditing Standards Board of Bhutan
(AASBB).

The statutory audit report was prepared under the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016 and
other relevant Acts and regulatory norms in examining the accounts of the company
containing inter alia, the following:

General:

a) The Companies audited adhere to the Corporate Governance Guidelines and
Regulations as applicable to them.

b) The governing board/authority pursue a prudent and sound financial management
practice in managing the affairs of the company.

¢) The financial statements are prepared applying the Bhutanese Accounting
Standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Standards Board of Bhutan
(AASBB).

d) Proper books of accounts have been maintained and financial statements are in
agreement with the underlying accounting records.

e) Adequate records as specified under Section 228 of the Companies Act of Bhutan
2016 have been maintained.

f) The mandatory obligations social entrusted are being fulfilled.
g) Theamount of tax is computed correctly and reflected in the financial statements.

1. The Company has maintained Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) Register
showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of PPE.

2. As per the information provided by the company, they had conducted the
Physical Verification of the Assets once during the financial year 2023.

3. The fixed assets of the Company have not been revalued during the year under
audit.

4. The company had conducted physical verification of the inventories twice during
the year (October& November, 2023 by Accounts Division) excluding physical
verification conducted by respective division.

5. During the physical verification of inventory conducted by the internal audit team, the shortage
worth of Nu.7,678,379.24 (PY: Nu. 851,438.79) was identified between physical stock and book
records. The shortage will be recovered from the relevant employee starting from April 2023. Dead
Stock as at the year-end was 48.57mn.
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The inventories records are adequately maintained by the Company. The method of
valuation of inventory for the company is adequate and commensurate with the size and
nature of business.

Based on the information provided to us, the reconciliation is done between physical
inventories and system recorded inventories wherever necessary.

It has been confirmed by management that after physical verification of inventories
the obsolete, damaged, slow moving and surplus goods/inventories lying in the stores
were dealt as per their manual at the end of the year.

There is amount to be recovered from the employees due to material
loss/discrepancies in physical/book balances of inventories including finished
goods, raw materials, stores and spares.

The Basis of Valuation of Stock is adequate and no deviation from the preceding
financial year has been observed.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
taken secured/unsecured loans from companies, firms or other parties and/or from
the companies under the same management.

The company has not granted any loans to other parties which are ultra-vires to the
Articles of Incorporation and other relevant Acts and regulations.

Advances granted to officers/staff are generally in keeping with the provisions of
service rules and no excessive/frequent advances are granted and accumulation of
large advances against any particular individual is avoided.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us in course
of the audit, the Company has generally established reasonably adequate system of
internal controls to ensure completeness, accuracy and reliability of accounting
records, to carry out the business in an orderly and efficient manner, to safeguard the
assets of the Company as well as to ensure adherence to the applicable rules /
regulations and systems and procedures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is a
reasonable system of authorization at proper levels and an adequate system of internal
control commensurate with the size of the company and nature of its business, on issue
of stores and allocation of materials and labour to Jobs.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having
regard to the exception that some of the items purchased are of special nature and suitable
alternative sources do not exist for obtaining comparable quotations thereof, there is an
adequate system of competitive bidding, commensurate with the size of the Company

10
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19.

20.

21

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

and the nature of its business, for the purchase of goods and services including stores, raw
materials, plant and machinery, equipment and other assets.

As explained to us, the Company has entered into transactions for purchases and
sales of goods and services during the year in pursuance of contracts or arrangements
entered into with the company in which the director(s) are directly or indirectly interested
at the prices which are reasonable considering the prevailing market conditions.

During the course of our examination of the books of account carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices, we have neither come across
any personal expenses (other than contractual and/or as per customary business
practices), which have been charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income nor
have we been informed about such cases by the management.

According to the information and explanations given to us and also as examined by
us, there was no cases, where any items of inventory, which are unserviceable or
damaged.

The Company, in general, has an adequate system of ascertaining and
identifying unserviceable or damaged inventories and loss, if any, on the sale of the
same, which needs to be duly accounted /charged in these accounts.

The corporation is having adequate physical safeguards to prevent unauthorized or
irregular movement of materials from the corporation.

The Company is maintaining reasonable records for sales and disposal of realizable
scraps.

According to the records maintained by the company and produced to us, the
Company has generally been regular in depositing rates and taxes, provident fund and
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. In our opinion, the provision for
Corporate Tax is adequate and that necessary adjustments have been made to compute
amount of tax required under the Rules on the Income Tax Act of the Kingdom of
Bhutan - 2001.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and so far it appears from
the examination of the books, there were Nu.8,827,491.70 (PY: Nu. 22,501,390.40)
undisputed amounts payable in respect of rates and taxes as on the last day of Financial
Year 2023.
. Bhutan Sales Tax (under the Other Current Liability - Note No. 8,827,491.70

(PY: Nu. 22,501,390.40)

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company has a
reasonable system of allocating man hours utilized to the respective jobs, commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

ox
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32.

33

35.

36.

37:

38.

39.

In our opinion, there is a reasonable system of price fixation taking into account the
market conditions and the cost of purchase of stores, spares and fuels, etc. and hiring
charges are fixed with the approval of the management.

No credit rating of customers is being carried out.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not
make any sales through commission agents and hence, this paragraph is not
applicable.

There is a proper system for continuous follow-up with debtors and other parties for
recovery of outstanding amounts by way of sending reminders and personal visits.
Age-wise analysis of outstanding amounts between more than 3 months and under 3
months is maintained by the Corporation.

In our opinion, and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, the
management of liquid resources, particularly cash/bank etc. are, in generally,
reasonably adequate.

In our opinion and to the extent our examination reveals, the business activities carried
out by the Company are lawful and intra-vires to its Articles of Incorporation.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has a system of obtaining approval of the Board for all major capital
investment decisions.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has established an effective budgetary control system.

Being a non-manufacturing concern, question of standard costing and variance
analysis does not arise.

In our opinion and to the extent revealed by our examination, the details of
remuneration, commission and other payments made in cash or in kind to the Board
of Directors including the Managing Director or to any of their relatives by the
Company, directly or indirectly, are disclosed in Note 31 (a)of the Notes to the
Accounts.

As informed, all the directives of the board have been complied with.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the officials of the
company are refrained from transmitting any price sensitive information which is not
made publicly available. Unauthorized to their relatives/friends/associates or close
persons which will directly or indirectly benefit them.

12
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40. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company maintains

41.

proper records for Inter Unit Transactions/services and arrangement for services
made with other agencies engaged in similar activities

According to the information and explanations given to us, proper agreements are
executed and that the terms and conditions of Lease are reasonable and the same are
applied if machinery and Equipment are acquired on lease or leased out to others.

COMPUTERISED ACCOUNTING ENVIRONMENT

1. In our opinion, organizational and system development controls and other internal
controls appears to be generally adequate relative to the size and nature of computer
installation.

2. According to the information and explanations given to us, disaster recovery plans are
in place in the Company.

3. The Company has a Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) in place commensurate with the
size and nature of business of the Company.

4. The operational controls in the Company are generally adequate to ensure
correctness and validity of input data and output information.

5. According to the information and explanations given to us, measures to prevent
unauthorized access to the computer installation and files are adequate.

6. The Company does not have any physical access control in the form of access doors
and CCTV in Stores.

7. The Corporation has been using Microsoft Dynamic 365 ERP System for
bookkeeping, which may be upgraded for better output.

GENERAL

1. Going Concern Issues:

On the basis of the attached Financial Statements as at 31 December 2023 and according
to the information and explanations given to us, the financial position of the company is
healthy, and we have no reason to believe that the Company is likely to become sick in
the near future.

Ratio Analysis:

Financial and Operational Results of the Company has been given in Annexure to this
report.
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Compliances with the Compénies Act of Bhutan, 2016

According to the information ar\j'\d explanations given to us by the management and based
on a Compliance Checklist completed by the Company Officials, the Company has
generally complied with the provisions of The Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016.

Our observations in this regard are given below: -
a) The Company has filed annual return as required by Section 267 of the Act.
b) The Company has held annual general meeting as required by Section 177 of the Act.

¢) The Company is following the accrual basis of accounting as required under Section
235(b) of the Act.

d) Following statutory registers have been maintained by the Company depicting
certain prescribed particulars as required to be disclosed under the Act.

i.  Register of Directors
ii.  Register of charges [Section 228(c)]

e) The Corporation has not employed any full-time Company Secretary in terms with Section
213 & 215 of the Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016.

Adherence to Laws, Rules and Regulations

The audit of the Company is governed by the Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016 and the
scope of audit is limited to examination and review of the financial statements, as
produced to us by the management. In the course of audit, we have reviewed compliance
to the Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016 and its Articles of Incorporation and as explained to
us, the Company has been generally complying with appropriate laws, rules and
regulations, systems, procedures and practices.

For GHOSH & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 32@?16@0
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CA PYP. Ghosh, Partner
Membership No.:055752
Place: Bhu

Date: £ liaJanMAR 2024
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2023
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ASSETS
Non-current assets :
Property, plant and equipment 2 506,801,804.08 431,345,226.06
Capital working-in-progress 3 67,541,480.49 45,528,163.50
Right of Use 4 54,769,044.07 26,368,605.99
Non-current tax assets 5 29,815,887.19 11,444,552.33
Deferred tax assets 6 13,602,061.67 9,880,248.47
Total non-current assets 672,530,277.50 | 524,566,796.35
Current assets
Inventories 7 363,070,992.36 | 448,080,039.81
Investments 8 14,516,753.31 15,728,879.46
Trade and other receivables 9 266,062,724.78 | 242,807,551.37
Cash and cash equivalents 10 42,160,697.97 | 112,357,265.21
Other current assets 11 113,650,550.02 | 104,361,982.42
Total current assets 799,461,718.44 923,335,718.27
TOTAIL ASSETS 1,471,991,996.24 | 1,447,902,514.92
EQUITY AND LIABLITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 180,001,600.00 | 180,001,600.00
i Retained Earnings 131 117,180,809.84 133,967,416.80
| Reserves 13 ii 333,952,032.76 | 333,952,032.76
Total equity 631,134,442.60 | 647,921,049.16
Non-current liabilities
Long term borrowings 14 109,006,370.56 128,785,620.42
Other payabies 15 - -
Employee benefits obligation 16 15,956,763.68 35,355,836.51
Lease liability 17 56,322,066.68 31,200,463.59
Total non-current liabilities 181,285,200.92 | 195,341,920.52
Current Liabilities
Short term borrowings 18 365,016,946.69 | 351,977,658.61
Trade and other payables 19 206,037,427.21 154,390,540.99
Other current liabilities 20 74,140,913.58 94,959,124.94
Employee benefits obligation 21 6,925,264.40 3,312,220.00
Current tax liabilities 22 7,451,800.15 -
Total current liabilities 659,572,352.02 604,639,544.54
Total liabilities 840,857,552.95 | 799,981,465.07
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 1,471,991,996.24 | 1,447,902,514.92

The notes to accounts referred to above form an integral part of Statement of Financiel Position.

For Ghosh & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants AR

e e i R
Firm's Registration No. 3220161~
[S/ 7
lf:l:/ Char |
C | d
\\ Accounta

CA I¢P. Ghosh, Partner :
(Managing Partner) Membership No..055752

Place: T}kimphu, Bhutan

Date: MAR 2324
UDIN: AHO 55 ISABK iy TOS Yy g
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Chairperson
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STATEMENT OF C.OMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2023

Particulars

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total revenue

Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Employee benefit expenses
Finance costs

Depreciation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense

Current tax expense

(1) Current Tax

(2) Prior Year Tax
Deferred tax expense

Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans

Gain on revaluation of land

Income tax relating to component for other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the yecar

Earnings Per Share

Note|

(Amounts in Nu.)

31-Dec-23 31-Dec-22

23 3,363,520,135.18 | 3,181,387,858.50
24 79,943393.45 | 49,875,375.41
3,443,463,528.63 | 3,231,263,233.92
3,129,803,472.78 | 3,072,549,792.10

25 70,089,245.81 | (158,537,694.85)
26 121,035415.45 | 108,995,990.79
27 32,282,635.49 | 32,142,353.60
2,4 23,090,309.33 | 23,359,397.27
28 47,148,402.04 | 73,395,480.36
3,423,449,480.90 | 3,151,905,319.27
20,014,047.73 | 79,357,914.65

29 7,308906.12 |  22,005,405.09
7,451,800.15 | 25,726,119.08
7,451,800.15 | 22,448,356.08

-|  3,277,763.00

(142,894.02) | (3,720,713.99)
12,705,141.61 | 57,352,509.56
11,929,731.87 | (9,902,102.00)
75,026,625.55

3,578,919.56 (478,728.0G)
15,508,651.43 | 64,645,795.55
28,213,793.04 | 121,998,305.10

30 0.71 3.19

The abeve Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

For Ghosh & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 322016E
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

STCBL STCBL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(Amounts in Nu.)

BRI - —~ o h o © © 1y~ o sls 2023
g < 2 10 10 © = = 10 o ¥ Z A .
s < 22S335532(3 (Amounts in Nu.)
73 I G S S 3|3 " Particulars ST . 31-Dec-23 . 31-Dec-22.
YN S ¥ oSNNS O S|n © . . , B e ==
E. 5 2 G e o = B NS Cash flow from operating activities
% R v e N 8 Profit before tax 20,014,047.73 79,357,9]4_'65
S { i Depreciation 20020290/ 23859,597.27
q, — ' in 1o g N Loss/(gain) on property, plant and equipment 8,170,576.50
= R 5 oo < |©
B § § § g @ Py Interest expense 32,282,635.49 32,142,353.60
Ty 3 S 2 = .
.1:’ % S g g § § § J - Interest income (14,032,977.21) | (11,443,863.07)
LB A ¥ © 6 |0 M Deferred rent - (8,948,048.30)
2 ° ‘vl o ~—
'L_‘f' g Unrealized foreign exchange loss/(gain) 59,115.17
Q) et
g
‘O . ¢ Net profit from operating activities before working capital changes 61,413,130.51 122,638,330.64
R .
'éh EgBrngse T35 % Adjustment for:
By 2RSS S $RS|S ' '
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S S ~ o
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o o
. = i 18,371,334.86 2 53
TN R g Income tax paid 39,782,458.5
§ § § § :39 g (i) Net cash from operating activities 149.851,830.64 |  474,266,578.81
= = = == ® X : . St
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E S S S|§ 2 _ :
i 2 ® o =] E, g Interest received 2,738,265.04
3 T
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5 8 o
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Dividend Paid (45,000,400.00) | (45,000,400.00) |
(iii) Net cash from (used in) financing activities (97,062,285.35) | (391,997,716.02)
Net Increase/Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalent  (i+ii+iii) (70,137,452.07) 34,643.86
Cash and cash equivalent in the beginning of the financial year 112,357,265.21 |  112,322,621.10
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (59,115.17) -
Unclaimed dividend 1,254,919.63 )
Cash .and cas_h .equxvalent in the end of the financial year (excluding 40,905,778.34 | 112,357,265.21
unclaimed dividend)

The above Statenent of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

For Ghosh & ASSOCIATES On Behalf of Board

Chartered Accountants - g
Firm's Registration No. 322016E Chairperson /I/A% J
% AS @
) ORI ° e o
A (R Accounting Policies &

K A & Notes to Accounts

.\‘\
CA P.P. Ghosh, Partner » Director, ~rrg
(Managing Partner) Membership No. 055752 K S
Place: Thimphu, Bhutan ’ o
Date 2 5 MAR 97V
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended December 31, 2023
A: General Information:

I. Reporting Entity:

State Trading Corporation of Bhutan (“STCBL” or “the Company”) - has been incorporated and
registered under the Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2016 and has registered office
located at Thimphu, Bhutan. The Company is a subsidiary of Druk Holding and Investments
Limited (DHI) which holds 50.98% stake in STCBL. The Company derives its revenue primarily
from trading of automobiles, petroleum, computer and IT accessories, stones, household items

etc.

B: Disclosure of Significant Accounting Policies:

The note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

I. Basis of Preparation:
a) Compliance with BAS/BFRS

The “Accounting and Auditing Standards Board of Bhutan’ (AASBB), has decided to adopt BFRS
in phases with minor changes. The Company in compliance with the Companies Act of Kingdom
of Bhutan has adopted all the applicable Standards. The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable BAS/BFRS and other applicable laws such as Companies Act of
the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2016.

b) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
¢ Certain financial assets and liabilities;
* Assets held for sale - measured at fair value less cost to sell; and
* Defined benefit plans

¢) Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:
a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading:
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a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading:
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c) Expected to be realized within twelve months after reporting period.

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:
a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after reporting period.

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

i. Use of estimates

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with BAS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and contingent
liabilities at the date of financial statements, income and expenses during the period. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
is in respect of impairment, useful lives of property, plant and equipment etc., deferred tax assets,
provisions, fair value measurements of financial instruments and retirement benefit obligations.

ii. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to the customer
at the consideration which the Company has received or expects to receive in exchange of those
products or services, net of discounts, rebates, returns and taxes and amounts collected on behalf
of third parties.

Revenue is recognised when, or as, each distinct performance obligation is satisfied. The main
categories of revenue and the basis of recognition are as follows:

a) Sale of traded goods

The company is involved in trading of various goods such as automobiles, computer and IT
accessories, stones, household items etc.
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In case of sale where the Company provides an option of deferred payment, significant financing
component in the contract is identified and interest income is recognised over the concerned

period.

The Company considers whether there is other obligation in the contract that are separate
performance obligation and determines whether a portion of transaction price needs to be
allocated to those obligations.

b) Service revenue

Revenue from service mainly comprises of revenue from maintenance services. Revenue from
providing services is recognized at the point in time when the service is rendered.

c) Interest income

Other income comprises interest income on fixed deposits and sale on deferred instalment
payment basis.

d) Other Income

Other Incomes are recognized only when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the entity.

iii. Property, plant and equipment
a) PPE is initially recognized at cost.

The company follows cost model for property, plant and equipment and are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and where applicable accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Only those costs are
recognized as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

The Property, plant and equipment are derecognized when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or on disposal.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the

carrying amount. These are recognized net within “other income / other expenses” in Statement
of profit and or loss.
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b) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item, or as a separate asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other costs incurred for the
running and maintenance of property, plant and equipment are expensed off in the year in which
they are incurred.

c) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Company provides depreciation on property, plant and equipment on straight-line method to
allocate cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, in case of certain
structure constructed on leased land, the shorter lease term as follows:

Building and civil structures:

a) Temporary structure 5-8 years
b) Permanent structure 35 years
Furniture 10 years
Office Equipment 3-8 years
Vehicles 7-10 years with 20% residual value

Air conditioner 3-7 years
Loose tools 7 years
Plant & machineries (ACW) 7 years
Software 5-7 years
Central Heating System 20 years

iv. Foreign currency
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the company operates. The functional currency of
STCBL is Bhutanese Ngultrum (Nu) which is also the presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recognized in the financial statements in functional
currency using exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the relevant
functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are generally recognized in profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the statement of profit or loss, within finance costs. All other

> (D N\
7\

4
{ \=7 \
» ) |
g.\“
fn|
/ /

/ /

25

STCBL

STCBL

foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit or loss on a net basis

within other income or other expenses.

v. Investments and other financial assets
a) Initial measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

b) Classification and subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets of the Company are classified in the
following categories:

e Financial assets measured at amortized cost;

e Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);
and

e Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification of financial assets depends on the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collectin g
contractual cash flows; and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is recognized
directly in profit or loss and presented in other income or expense. This category generally applies
to trade and other receivables, bank deposits, security deposits, investment in bonds, cash and

cash equivalents and employee loans, etc.
§\\ a5
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Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:

A financial instrument shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if
both of the following conditions are met:

e the objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

o the asset's contractual cash flow represents SPPI.

Financial instruments included within FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each

reporting period at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in other comprehensive
income (OCI).

Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss:

Fair value through profit and loss is the residual category. Any financial instrument which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income is classified at FVTPL. Financial instruments included within FVTPL
category are measured initially as well as at each reporting period at fair value. Fair value
movements are recorded in statement of profit and loss.

¢) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit loss (ECLs) for all financial instruments
except for financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective

interest rate.

The ECL is recognized for 12 months and lifetime. The ECL is determined based on the significant
increase in the credit risk ‘SICR” and objective evidence of impairment over the life of the financial
asset. For the computation of ECL, the standard prescribes a rebuttable presumption of 30 days
past due as ‘SICR” and 90 days past due as default. As a practical expedient, the standard allows
simplified approach for ECL computation of trade receivables, contract assets and lease

receivable. The policy prescribes the following:
1) 30 days past due as trigger point for SICR
2) 90 days past due as the default point

3) Simplified approach for computation of ECL for trade receivables, contract assets and lease

receivables.

The impairment of financial asset is guided by the guidelines issued by the DHI.

STCBL

d) De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized only when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have been transferred, or

e The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial
asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more

recipients.

When the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has substantially transferred
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognized. When the Company has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

When the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the entity has not
retained control of the financial asset. When the entity retains control of the financial asset, the
asset is

vi. Financial liability

a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. All financial liabilities are
recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, borrowings including bank overdrafts.

b) Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in BFRS 9 are satisfied.
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For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit
risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes
in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has
not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Borrowings

Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a
breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting
date, the entity classify the liability as current, even if the lender agreed, after the reporting period
and before the authorization of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a
consequence of the breach.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

c¢) De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Position when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
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consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized

in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

vii. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities or income and expenses are offset and the net amount
reported in the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income when,
and only when, the entity has a legal right and is allowed by the standard to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency, or
bankruptcy of the entity or the counterparty.

viii. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short - term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

ix. Provision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized if, as a result of a past event, the entity has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosed for all possible obligations that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

X. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognized in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences

between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes (Tax base).
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Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit nor loss.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the tax authority
on the taxable entity, further they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. A deferred tax asset is recognized
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilized.

xi. Inventories

a. Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

b. Cost is calculated on the basis of specific identification for all automobiles and on weighted
average method for all other items. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the normal
course of business in bringing such inventories to its present location and condition.

xii. Employee benefits

Employee benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by
employees of the company as detailed below:

a) Defined contribution plan (pension and provident fund)

As required by National Pension & Provident Fund, both the employee and employer make
monthly contributions to the provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan, equal to a
specified percentage of employee’s basic salary. The company has no further obligations under
the plan beyond its monthly contributions. The company does not have any legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not have sufficient assets to pay all of the
employee’s entitlements. Obligation for contributions to the plan is recognized as an employee
benefit expense in profit or loss when the contribution to the fund becomes due.

b) Post-employment - Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

In accordance with the STCBL service rule, the company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit
retirement plan covering all employees. The gratuity provides a lump sum payment to vested
employees, at retirement or termination of employment, an amount based on the respective
employee’s last drawn salary and the years of employment with the company. The calculation is
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performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method and amount of
obligation is provided in profit or loss. The plan is unfunded.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit

expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income and presented within equity.

Transfer grant and travel allowance

As per company'’s service manual, the employee who have rendered minimum one year of service
excluding probation period are entitled to one-month basic pay as travel allowance and the
employee who have rendered minimum two years of service excluding probation period are
entitled one-month basic pay as transfer grant at the time of leaving the service. One-month basic
pay for this purpose is the pay at the time of leaving the service. The calculation is performed
annually by a qualified actuary and amount of obligation is provided in profit or loss. The plan is
unfunded.

Carriage Charge

As per company’s service manual, the employee who have rendered minimum one year of service
excluding probation period are entitled to freight allowance based on employee grade at the time
of leaving the service. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary and amount
of obligation is provided in profit or loss. The plan is unfunded.

c) Short term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided. All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of
rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits and they are recognized in the
period in which the employee renders the related service. The Company recognizes the
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.

d) Earned leave encashment

The employees of the company are entitled for earned leave. The portion of the unutilized earned
leave at the end of the year shall be compensated in cash during the end of the year or retirement
or termination of employment for the unutilized accrued earned leave based on the salary at the
time. The calculation is performed annually and amount of obligation is provided in profit or loss.
The plan is unfunded.
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xiii. Leases

The company assesses all lease contract at inception whether it contains a lease. If the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration, then a right-to-use asset is recognized, and lease liability is recognized for all future
lease payments.

The standard provides exemption for short-term i.e. less than 12 months and low value leases.
Right-of-use asset

The standard provides the option to present right-of-use as separate item on the balance sheet or
as part of PPE or investment properly. For subsequent measurement of right-of-use, the standard
provides choice to adopt cost model or revaluation model, or fair value model.

The DHI Group policy prescribes to:

1) Apply exemption on short term and low value leases as defined in the guidelines for
materiality.

2) Present the right-to-use asset as a separate item on balance sheet.
3) Subsequent measurement based on cost model for leases recognized.
Lease Liability

The lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
than any lease incentive receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

xiv. Impairment - non-current assets

The carrying amount of the non-current assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss

statement.

xv. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of
their carrying value and fair value less costs to sell.

STCBL
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Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying value will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is only met when
the sale is highly probable; asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition and is
marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. The Company
must also be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or
amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

xvi. Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset (a qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale) are added to the cost of those assets until such time when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

xvii. Operating segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker.

xviii. Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and

no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.

xix. Earnings per share

a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other
than ordinary shares
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by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and excluding treasury

shares
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b) Diluted earnings per share

the after-Income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive

A diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
potential ordinary shares, and

share to take into account:
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the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding

assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Comparative information
Prior year figures have been restated, regrouped or reclassified to comply with BAS and

XX.

effect of which, if any, has been adjusted.

n
o
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Note:

Land are recognized at fair value based on periodic valuations by external independent valuers.
A revaluation surplus is credited to other reserves in shareholders’ equity. All other property,
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plant and equipment is recognized at historical cost less depreciation.

2017 PAV A value for STCBL owned Thromde Plots:

SM1-314

0.28 acres

2017 PAVA

10,068,718.26

2 Thimphu Simtokha 3327 SM1-315 0.263 acres 9,189,399.66
& Thimphu Babesa 6122 SM1-311 0.102 acres 3,568,785.39
4 |Chhukha | Phunsholing 1276 | PGT-842 | 1020acres | 51,17854620
Total 74,005,449.51

2022 PAVA value for STCBL owned Thromde Plots:

1 Thimphu Simtokha 3326 SM1-314 0.288 acres 32,999,664.78
2 Thimphu Simtokha 3327 SM1-315 0.263 acres 30,117,746.93
3 Thimphu Babesa 6122 SM1-311 0.102 acres 11,696,495.88
4 Chhukha Phuntsholing core 1276 PGT-842 1.020 acres 74,562,281.98
Total 149,376,189.57

2017 PAVA value for STCBL owned Rural Plots:

N . Thram | " 2017 PAVA
2 Dzongkhag Gewog No. Plot No Company Value (Nu)
1 Tsirang Sergithang,Somtar 413 | PAT-2247 3.092 acres 1,134,485.72
2 | Tsirang Spifang 413 | PAT-1883 1.390 acres 510,004.90
Somtar
Total 1,644,490.62
2022 PAVA value for STCBL owned Rural Plots:
1 Tsirang Sergithang,Somtar 413 | PAT-2247 3.092 acres 897,091.24
2 | Tsirang =il 413 | PAT-1883 1.390 acres 403,284.87
Somtar
Total 1,300,376.11

Note 3: Capital working-in-progress
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Noe 4: Right of Use Asset

Particulars 31-Dec-23

Note 8 : Inestments

Balance at 1 January 2022 35,646,771.26 a3 _Padticulars A-Dec2d
Additions 5.637,140.01 Fixed deposits with maturity more than 3 m.onths 14,516,753.31 15,728,879.46
Adjustments/ Disposals Interest accrued and not due on fixed deposits - -
Total 14,516,753.31 15,728,879.46
Balance at 31 December 2022 41,283,911.27 ¢ 2
Accumulated Depreciation Note 9 : Trade and other receivables
Balance at 1 January 2022 8,615,817.41 TR : T
gd]ustr.ne-nts/fDlstﬁosals i Unsecured, considered ood T
epreciation for the year 6,299,487.87 328,732,101.70 306,126,720.91
Balance at 31 December 2022 14,915,305.28 - £
As at 31 December 2022 26,368,605.99 Debtors suspense (48,225,967.68) (67,191,081.03)
Balance at 1 January 2023 26,368,605.99 Trade receivables (Unsecured, considered good)* 280,506,134.02 238,935,639.88
Additions 31,683,090.66 Interest accrued and due on sale made on deferred settlement 22 245 488.80
ot > 21,347.08 P S00:
Depreciation for the year 3,282,652.58 terms i
Balance st DecemBer 2008 54769 044.07 Interest accrued but not due on sale made on deferred settlement = 2134679
L terms* SEaE
Note 5 : Non-C Less: Provision for loss allowance 52,878,100.00 52,878,100.00
gteoriNon:Guirentitaxassels 227,649,382.10 208,324,375.46
Particulars - 3l-Dec:23 Security deposits 11,874,142.24 10,244,693.15
Advance tax 29,815,887.19 27,522,213.67 Other receivable (Net of provision of Nu. 1,800,000 (2018: Nu. 21.693.870.88
Less: Provision for tax - 16,077,661.34 1,800,000, 2017: Nu. 1,800,000) 23,994,588.24 AR
Total 29,815,887.19 11,444,552.33 WA Recoverable from employees 2,544,612.20 2,544,611.88
5% Total 266,062,724.78 242,807,551.37
Note 6 : Deferred tax assets (net) WA
Particulars 31-Dec-23 31-Dec-22 Note 10 : Cash and cash equivalents
Deferred tax assets S o e ‘ s
Employee benefit obligations 3,726,197.06 17,540.40 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Deferred revenue (1 ,232,12946) (261’159.36) Cash at bank 25,949,480.60 75,766,940.63
Deferrad renit 5 4 Cash on hand including cheques 6,038,683.74 5,951,687.24
* - -
2,494,067.60 (243,619.05) Other bank balanees!
Deferred tax liabilities Margin money with banks against LC 8,917,614.00 28,643,613.71
Property, plant and equipment (11,261,123.79) (11,261,123.79) Unclaimed dividend a/c 1,254,919.63 1,995,023.63
Recognition of revenue as per BFRS 15 (4,918,776.49) (4,918,776.49) Total 42,160,697.97 112,357,265.21
Inventory 5,071,906.21 6,056,033.23
(11,107,994.06) (10,123,867.52) oe 11 3 Other current assets Zopre 137 ‘ ‘ » 1
Total (13,602,061.67) (9,880,248.47) : £ Particulars = : . 31-Dec23 | 31-Dec-22
Note 7 : Inventories Advance recoverable in cash or in kind/for value to be received 105,101,811.13 99,336,887.62
i Considered Bad or Doubtful: - 2
Trading stock 368,865,671.48 448,080,039.81 Total 105,101,811.13 99,336,887.62
Goods-in-transit = = Less: Provision for Bad or Doubtful Advances - -
Less: Provision for obsolescence and shortages 5,794,679.12 - Advance to suppliers 105,101,811.13 99,336,887.62
Total 363,070,992.36 448,080,039.81 Prepaid expenses 6,478,242.37 2,949,052.65
Advances for expenses 2,070,496.52 2,075,442.15
Total 113,650,550.02 104,361,982.42
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Particulars
Authorized

50,000,000 equity shares of Nu.10 each
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
18,000,160 (Previous year-18,000,160 @ 10) equity shares of Nu 10
each fully paid up.

Out of above, following bonus shares were allotted as fully paid up
without

payment being received in cash:

(a) 200,003 equity shares were allotted by capitalization of reserve in
year 2010 & 2011

(b) 300,005 equity shares were allotted by capitalization of reserve in
year 2012

(c) 9,00,008 equity share were allotted by capitalization of reserve in
the year 2013

(50.98% of the share capital are held by Holding Company - Druk
Holding and Investment Ltd.)

500,000,000

180,001,600

500,000,000

180,001,600

Total

180,001,600

180,001,600

Note 13 i: Retained Earnings

: Particulars
Retained Earnings

117,180,809.84

133,967,416.80

Note 13 ii: Reserves

Reserves

333,952,032.76

333,952,032.76

Note 14 : Long term borrowings

Particulars

31-Dec-23

31-Dec-22

Long term borrowings from Bank of Bhutan, NPPF and T Bank

109,006,368.56

128,785,620.42

Total

109,006,368.56

128,785,620.42

Note:

(a) The Company has borrowed funds from Bank of Bhutan (BOB) amounting to Nu. 103,400,000
as on 15 September 2015 at a floating rate of MLR (Minimum Lending Rate) plus margin. The
term loan is subject to moratorium period and thereafter repayable in equal monthly
instalments of Nu. 1,104,914 each starting from 1 July 2018. The said loan is secured by
hypothecation of property (vehicles, plant and machinery, equipment and tools, stock, book
debts and other assets) to BOB by way of first charge as security.

(b) The Company has borrowed funds from Bank of Bhutan (BOB) amounting to Nu. 5,100,000
as on 12 January 2017 at a floating rate of MLR (Minimum Lending Rate) plus margin. The
term loan is repayable in equal monthly instalments of Nu. 55,400 each starting from 1

February 2017 and was liquidated during the year.

58

STCBL

(c) The Company has borrowed funds from National Pension and Provident Fund (NPPF)
amounting to Nu. 20,000,000 as on 11 September 2019 at a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum
payable quarterly. The term loan is repayable in equal quarterly instalments starting from 1

January 2021.

(d) The Company has borrowed funds from T Bank amounting to Nu. 30,000,000 as on 23 October
2020 at a floating interest rate of 5% per annum as Bridging Loan under the COVID-19
Pandemic Phase II Monetary Measures. The term loan is repayable in equal quarterly

instalments starting from 1 October 2021.

Note 15 : Other pay abls

Particulars

Deerre rent

31-Dec-22

Total - -
Note
i 0 31Dec23 .

Gratuity 9,765,785.50 22,781,079.51
Leave encashment 3,688,122.00 3,688,122.00
Travel allowance 1,441,931.33 3,182,869.00
Transport charge 218,799.52 3,176,562.00
Transfer grant 842,125.33 2,527,204.00
Total 15,956,763.68 35,355,836.51

Not 17 : Lease iaili

Particulars

Balance at 1 January 2022 31,200,463.60 30,865,772.07
Additions 25,121,603.08 5,637,140.01
Adjustments/ Disposals - (5,302,448.49)
Balance at 31 December 2022 56,322,066.68 31,200,463.59

Note 18 : Short term borrowings

‘ ST E T " Particulars

Overdraft with Bank of Bhutan 7,098,308.24 130,252,420.45
Overdraft with T Bank 27,288,982.41 -
Short term loan from NPPF 5,390,150.25 21,725,238.16
Commercial paper 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
Inter-corporate borrowings 100,314,520.55 -
Current maturities of long term borrowings 24,924,985.24 -
Total 365,016,946.69 351,977,658.61
7~ RO
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(@) The Company has availed an overdraft facility from Bank of Bhutan (BOB) as on 5 August
2015 at a floating interest rate. The said loan is secured by hypothecation of property (vehicles,
plant and machinery and tools) to BOB by way of first charge as security.

(b) The Company has borrowed working capital loan from T Bank Ltd. with a fund based limit
of Nu. 100 million at a fixed interest rate of 11% per annum. The said loan is secured by

mortgage of company's property as collateral.

(c) The company issued 1,000 units (FV of Nu. 100,000 per unit) of commercial paper from a bank
amounting to Nu. 98,235,616 on 3 October, 2023 for 180 days at a discount rate of 6%. The said
issue was secured against trade receivables and stock-in-trade.

(d) The Company has taken a term loan of Nu. 50 million from NPPF at a fixed interest rate of
10.50% per annum. The said loan is repayable within 1 year from the date of disbursement.

(e) The Company has taken an inter-corporate loan from State Mining Corporation Ltd. (DHI
owned company) on 9 November, 2023 (Nu.60 million) & on 27 December, 2023 (Nu.40
million) at a fixed interest rate of 3.50% per annum for 140 days & 184 days respectively.

Note 19 : Trade and other payables

Darticulars
Trade payables
Liability for purchase
Liability for expenses

Liabilities of un-withdrawn cheque
Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Earnest money deposits

Security deposit

Retention money

Unclaimed dividend

Payable to employees for provident fund
Payable to employees

Deferred Revenue

Total

31-Dec-23 31-Dec-22
172,685,797.13 91,851,340.31
(0.99) (0.99)
889,233.26 2,110,987.45
6,624.27 349,880.55
s 23,558,812.30
285,800.42 385,800.42
3,182,094.62 2,835,554.62
7,287,315.67 1,627,572.64
1,255,019.61 1,995,023.63
320,820.49 668,881.42
20,124,722.73 29,234,388.64
- (227,700.00)
206,037,427.21 154,390,540.99

Note 20 : Other current liabilities

Particulars

Advance from customers*
Deferred revenue*
Bhutan Sales Tax

Others

Total

31-Dec-22
61,403,080.77 68,432,045.39
850,433.89 4,087,001.00
8,827,491.70 22,501,390.40
3,059,907.22 (61,311.85)
74,140,913.58 94,959,124.94
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Note 21 : Employee benefits obligation - current
i " Particulars '

Gratuity
Leave encashment

Travel allowance
Transport charge
Transfer grant
Total

. 31-Dec-23

3,849,220.49

31-Dec-22

2,160,241.00

380,585.00 380,585.00
865,386.25 204,780.00
1,021,643.41 376,656.00
808,429.25 189,958.00
6,925,264.40 3,312,220.00

Not 22 : Current tax liabilities

Particulars

Provisin for tax
Less: Advance tax
Total

31-Dec-23
7,451,800.15

31-Dec-22

7,451,800.15

Note 23 : Revenue from operations

Trading:
Sale of products*
Sale of services*
Total

3,337,205,542.57 3,154,643,913.54
26,314,592.61 26,743,944.96
3,363,520,135.18 3,181,387,858.50

Note: *These represents revenue from customers and revenue recognized at a point in time.

Note: The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
is for expected period of up to one year or for obligation which corresponds with its right to consideration.

Note 24 : Other income
e ~ _ Particulars

BST refund
Interest income from financial assets at amortized cost*
Recoveries of shortage for inventories

Gain on exchange fluctuation (net)

Gains/ (losses) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Commission and auction

Provision no longer required

Total

31-Dec-23"
48,167,638.32
14,032,977.21

(59,115.17)
(162,947.36)
98,497.79
17,866,342.66
79,943,393.45

- 31-Dec-22

30,135,444.10
11,443,863.07

125,491.74
8,170,576.50

49,875,375.41

Note 25 : Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

' Particulars

31-Dec-23

31-Dec-22

Opening balance

Traded goods 447,981,162.08 289,542,341.08
Goods-in-transit - -
Total opening balance 447,981,162.08 289,542,341.08
Closing balance

Traded goods 377,891,916.27 448,080,035.93
Goods-in-transit - -
Total closing balance 377,891,916.27 448,080,035.93
Total 70,089,245.81 (158,537,694.85)
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Not 26: m ployee benefit expenses
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Partical Siibiaos Provision for obsolescence and shortages 5,794,679.12
e 2SS Advance written off 351,656.53 -
Pay and allowances 85,481,638.29 72,675,712.23 CSR Project 682,880.00 -
Provident fund contribution 7,100,414.00 7,019,126.00 Stock Vehicle maintenance 682,242.52
Gratuity 5,855,333.96 4,396,149.00 Auditfors R ohianss tion
Travel allowance 623,348.63 534,658.00 Audit Fee 280,000.00 150,000.00
Transport charge 572,105.84 900,953.00 Out of pocket expenses 107,958.00 21,120.00
Transfer grant 859,904.87 2,389,817.79 TOTAL 47,148,402.04 73,395,480.36
Bonus and variable pay 16,172,241.23 15,911,465.10
Medical expenses 49,538.64 140,278.14 Note 29(a): Tax ex
Staff training and development expenses 575,007.19 1,520,159.41 - e Particula
Uniformiexpenses s Lty Ly | (a) Icome tax x ese rco ized in P&L
Welfare expenses 2,887,847.80 2,424,894.12 Clitrenbinx % i
Others = = Current tax on profit for the year 7,451,800.15 22,448,356.08
Total 121,035,415.45 108,995,990.79 Current tax adjustment for earlier years = 3,277,763.00
Total current tax expenses 7,451,800.15 25,726,119.08
Note 27 : Finance costs Deferred tax
, Decrease/ (increase) in deferred tax assets 841,233.00 233,759.67
Interest expense from financial instruments at amortized cost 32,282,635.49 32,142,353.60 (Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities (984,127.02) (3,954,473.66)
Total 32,282,635.49 32,142,353.60 Total deferred tax expenses (142,894.02) (3,720,713.99)
Income tax expenses recognized in P&L 7,308,906.12 22,005,405.09

Note 28 : Other expenses

Note 29(b): Numerical reconciliation between tax expense (income) and the product of accounting

profit multiplied by the tax rate

Administrative Expenses Particulars

Communication, internet and telephone charges 1,913,641.20 1,880,334.34 Tax expenses

Fees and taxes 3,073,964.42 3,777,862.60 - Current tax 7,451,800.15 25,726,119.08

Printing and stationery including postage 2,136,130.89 1,983,363.28 - Deferred tax (142,894.02) (3,720,713.99)

General insurance 540,682.25 1,285,154.22 Total tax expense 7,308,906.12 22,005,405.09

Electricity expenses 1,502,136.38 1,154,343.57 Profit (Loss) before tax 20,014,047.73 79,357,914.65

Lease rent = 2,755,656.61 Income tax expense/ (income) calculated at 30% 6,004,214.32 23,807,374.39

Others (Royalty, transportation, labour charges) 3,644,762.48 1,786,507.52 Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating 1,447,585.83 557 921.00

Repairs and Maintenance - taxable income MO

Repairs & maintenance Of buildings and civil structures 1,799,069.80 1,883,737.43 Others (142,894.02) (2,359,890.30)

Repairs & maintenance Of furniture, fixtures and equipment’s 459,910.36 1,079,296.28 : .

Running & maintenance Of vehicle 7,104,371.25 5,808,368.25 Reconclled Wit tax petseiasabove 7,308,906.12 Siahle

Running & maintenance Of other 47,933.38 600.00

Travelling and Conveyance -

Travelling expenses including foreign travels 8,626,757.50 8,077,404.50 Note 30: Earnings per share

Others - e . i _

Marketing & sales promotions 1,169,055.76 1,719,458.52 Particulars 1- - = .2

Board meeting expenses and sitting fees 953,680.00 668,870.00 ; : : :

Office meeting expenses 1,101,626.94 2,177,340.55 Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (A) 12 705.142 57,352,510

gthir gper atmgt;a]xpenses ?’igg’ﬁggg 10’232’(1)222? Weighted average number of equity shares (B) 18,000,160 18,000,160
ank C arges-o ers / , 5 ’ ol B . ddl t d .

Consiliany il 359,839.52 1.245,891.90 asic and diluted earnings per share (A/B)

Product and Shrinkage loss = 18,683,953.62

Loss on impairment of trade receivables - 5,771,023.00
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Note 33: Related party disclosures

Note 31: Leases The Druk Holding and Investment (DHI) Company is the holding company (i.e. Parent
Company) holding 50.98% equity shares of the company.

Operating lease: Company as lessee

Fellow subsidiaries

Certain office premises, buildings, land etc. are obtained on leases. The lease term is for 1-30 years with Nomeotheampany

renewal clauses. There is no escalation clause in majority of lease agreements except in few such Bhutan Power Corporation Limited

arrangements. There are restrictions imposed by lease arrangements which restrict sublease/ mortgage Druk Green Power Corporation Limited
of lease prope

Bhutan Telecom Limited

otal

Druk Air Corporation Limited

26,902,880.91 41,283,911.28 Natural Resource Development Corporation Limited

Balance at 1 January 2023

14,381,030.37
Additions 136,386.77 31,546,703.62 31,683,090.39 Bank of Bhutan Limited
Adjustments/Disposals Dungsam Cement Corporation Limited
Balance at 31 December 2023 14,517,417.14 58,449,584.53 72,967,001.67 Dungsum Polymers Limited
Accumulated Depreciation Druk Holding & Investments Ltd.
Balance at 1 January 2023 1,026,992.16 13,888,313.12 14,915,305.28 Dagachu Hydro power Corporation Limited
Adjustments/ Disposals z = Bhutan Board Product Limited
Depreciation for the year 881,742.67 2,400,909.91 3,282,652.58 Bhutan Hydropower Services Limited
As at 31 December 2023 12,608,682.31 42,160,361.50 54,769,044.07 Penden Cement Authority Limited

G Tangsibji Hydro Energy Limited

Note 32: Movement in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)
Property, Revenue Adjustment

Construction Development Corporation Limited

Particulars | plantand | recognition as Detetre ] sin | Employee_ Lensesi State Mining Corporation Limited
» | ; - . revenue | . i\ benefits |  rentals
_equipment __per BFRS 15 BEEHVCIOLY: B Koufuku International Limited
At1January 2022 | (14,903,393) (4,718,444) | 1,110,955 (1,080,598) | 2,274,533 494,521 8,244,260 S5 ' =
Charged/ (credited): s
4 (a) Key Management Personnel Compensation
- to profit or loss - (2,552,016) 115,145 (1,402,458) 118,809 359,852 (3,360,668)
-to other According to BAS -24, Key Management Personnel (KMP) is those having the authority and
comprehensive 1,724,679 1,724,679 responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity.
income
Details of compensations paid to key management personnel (Chief Executive Officer):
oL Decmber [Vaa903,393) (7,270,460) | 1,226,100 | (2483,056) | 4,118,021 | 854,374 | 9,880,248 2 » Y GE ( | )
T I P e el e e ne k31 Pecember .
At1January 2023 | (14,903,393) (7,270,460) | 1,226,100 (2,483,056) | 4,118,021 854,374 9,880,248 - * Particulars 5 31 December 2023 - 2022 =
Charged/(credited): Short-term employee benefits 2,074,891.55 1,998,000
- to profit or loss ¥ = HE20:270) 827 120057 ) 142,83 Other long term and Post-employment benefits * 167,829.00 162,000
- to other 3,578,920 3,578,920 Others 88.000.00 84 000
comprehensive ’ . ,
o Total 2,330,720.55 2,244,000
At31 zD();;ember (14,903,393) (7:270,460) | 255130 |  (1,498,929) | 7,826,678 854,374 | 13,602,062 *The amount specified is in relation to provident fund contribution. Other benefits are

determined on the basis of actuarial valuation for the Company as a whole and hence segregation
is not available
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(v) Goods and services availed by fellow subsidiaries during financial year 2022 & 2021

66

(b) Transactions with related parties 31j,l,)iec'23" s AR Dec-22 Eoea,
i) Transactions with directors for FY 2023 & 2022 Qutstanding \ Valueof - Outstanding
Name of Company | 31 December 2023 31 December 2022 i | b Goor%s % AL at,yeflf .
Services year end Services end
RSA Pvt. Ltd* 15,814,948.48 14,305,764.00
* Mr. Singye N Dorji is the owner and Joint MD of RSA Pot. Ltd
Bhutan Board Product Ltd. 159,558.25
(ii) Transaction with the DHI, holding company during the financial year 2023 & 2022 36,604.84 116,269 23
Description . - | 31December2023 = 31 December 2022 -
P 394,827.00 116,269.23 -
DHI Nu. Nu.
Sale of vehicle services, spare parts and tyres 440,18852 1,043,828.07 Bank Of Bhutan Ltd 878,516.85
Trading revenue 5,689,443.00 12,253,211.00 608,292.26
i 9,710,332.00 5,269,941.00
Sale of vehicles 27,781,257.00 5
Corporate guarantee fees 250,719.00 166,186.61 7752134317
Brand management fees 1,321,624.72 1,668,831.11 Bhutan Power Corporation Ltd. s £ 7,550,012.10
. . oy Lol } e 36,326,055.18
(iii) Goods and Services availed from fellow subsidiaries during the financial year 2023 &
2022 236,098.00 -
o ‘ 31 December 2023 31 December 2022 Bhititan Telecom Ltd. 1,711,820.80
subseid(i)awries Particulars Value of Outstandin Value of ‘ Outstanding B0 1,122.190.90
Goods & g Amount at Goods & Amount at LKL (TR 447,558.17
Services year end Services year end A 15,373,540.80
Bivatan Teleccom Communication, 1,802,456.78 1,731,948.44
Limited tmeLand - ; 10,793,297.59 9,237,174.01
telephone charges Construction Development 2 869.560.37
Bhutan Power 1,224,277.94 999,818.62 Corporation Ltd. 148,429.00 253,295.00 4 4 .
Corporation Electricity charges =
Limited
Bank charges and 4,374,848.62 696,066.61
Bank of Bhutan ; »
Limited fees F)ther financial -
services : >
Bank of Bhutan | Interest charge on 11,770,245.86 19,074,336.70 Druk Air Corporation Ltd. 13,164.00 8,657.43
Limited loans ) 108.438.00 2
Bhutan Telecom 2,557,397.26 252,256,164.38 & 3,841,813.00
Limited )
Flight ticket and 806,681.00 1,024,851.00 2,292,391.95 3
Druk Air Limi i -
ruk Air Limited ;ﬁ;ec;l zzzvxces Dungsam Cement Corporation Ltd.
267,591.68
(iv) Liabilities booked for the DHI guarantee fee: 216,20200
6,396,718.02 -
. Guarantee amount (Nu.) | 31 December 2023 = 31 December 2022 2,218,227.92
40 million < Druk Green Power Corporation 16,381,679.25 15,823,396.68
Total -
> 911,822.00 e
\\ % ASS; ﬂ«‘s
P o (4 NN
Q/' T N o 2 5
‘, ( <ered = o UITA 1
™ | Elose
\{i ‘”//7

67



68

STCBL

984,433.48 8,695.00
Dagachu Hydro Power Corporation
Druk Holding & Investment 5,680,443.00 12,253,211.00 356,873.57
9,710,332.00 5269.941.00
Dungsam Polymers Ltd. 308,233.35 218,071.16 19,654.02
Koufuku International Limited 18,350.00 1,296,645.00 B
1,815,373.80 2,654,614.00 294,931.09
Natural Resources Development
Corporation Il 171,320.00 SaAnaTe
450,900.00 104829.00
13,895.06
Penden Cement Authority Ltd. 142,017.08
2,365,301.31 Sop7DRA7 80
2
28,193,713.82 AU
State Mining Corporation Ltd. 9,724,956.35
492,045.00
162,615.00
421,323.00 29,588.90
Tansibji Hydro Energy Ltd. 270,494.00
3,990.00
326,450.00 856,372.00
Thimphu Tech Park Ltd. 19,129.39
233,193.95 i
Bhutan Hydropower Service Ltd. 5,946,397.29 93,300.00
2 2
Menjong Sorig Pharmaceuticals 10,000.00 e
Corporation Ltd.
228,407.00
Note: Running & maintenance of vehicles includes Apollo tyres, K tyres, spares, services
\SN 2\ 51
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Terms and conditions of the transactions:

a. No amount has been written back/written off during the year in respect of dues
to/ from related party.

b. All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at
market rates.

c. Outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash.

Note 34: Segment reporting

Description of Segments

State Trading Corporation of Bhutan Limited has identified the following divisions: Toyota, Tata,
Eicher, Home store, Explosive and others segment. It is identified taking into account the nature
of the products, deferring risks and returns, organizational structure and internal business
reporting. Following are the segments of the Compariy-

(i)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

b)

)

d)

Toyota - This division deals with sales of vehicles, spare parts and servicing of Toyota
vehicles.

Tata - This division deals with sales of vehicles, spare parts and servicing of Tata vehicles.

Eicher - This division deals with sales of Eicher vehicles, spare parts, two wheelers and
Appolo tyres.

Home store & Others - This division deals with household items, agriculture machineries,
Bitumen, Kent filter etc.

SMLI - This division deals with sales of vehicles, spare parts and servicing of SMLI vehicles.
Petroleum - This division deals with sales of MS and HSD.

Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to
operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses which relate to group as a whole
and are not allocable to a segment on a reasonable basis, have been disclosed as
"Unallocable"

Segment assets and liabilities represent assets and liabilities of the respective segments.
Investments, tax related assets and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated for a

segment on a reasonable basis, have been disclosed as "Un-allocable".

The company does not have any single customer from whom it receives more than 10% of
the revenue.

Information about operating segment:
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Capital management

Note 35

The Company is a subsidiary of Druk Holding & Investments Limited (DHI). The amount

mentioned under total equity in balance sheet is considered as Capital.

safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total
equity so as to maintain investors, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The capital structure of the Company is based on

management's judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet strategic
and day-to-day needs. The Company manages its structure and makes adjustments in light of
changes in economic conditions. The funding requirements are primarily met through the

The amount mentioned under total equity in balance sheet is considered as Capital.

31 December
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Note 36: Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

31 December 2023 = 31 December 2022

Particulars e o

: : Amortized cost Amortized cost
Financial assets
Investments 14,516,753.31 15,728,879.46
Trade receivables 227,649,382.10 208,324,375.46
Deposits and other receivables 38,413,343.68 34,483,175.91
Cash & cash equivalent 42,160,697.97 112,357,265.21
Total financial assets 322,740,176.06 370,893,696.04
Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings 109,006,370.56 128,785,620.42
E::;r::}tm n;;turmes of long-term 24,924 ,985.24 23,558,812.30
Short term borrowings 365,016,946.69 351,977,658.61
Deferred rent = o
Trade payables 172,685,797.13 91,851,340.31
Deposits 3,467,895.04 3,221,355.04
Other payables 4,958,749.80 35,759,033.34
Total financial liabilities 680,060,744.46 635,153,820.02

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the
financial instruments that are (a) recognized and measured at fair value and (b) measured at
amortized cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide
an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting
standard.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to

fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
* the fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
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Fnil asses .
Trade receivables (Refer note (a))
Land 37,403,883.00 | 150,676,566.29 37,403,883.00 | 150,676,566.29

Financial liabilities

227,649,382.10 227,649,382.10 208,324,375.46 | 208,324,375.46

Long term borrowings from Bank of 56,211,451.01 56,211,451.01 79,994,419.06 79,994,419.06
Bhutan (Refer note (b))
Long term borrowings from NPPF 36,602,285.96 36,602,285.96 42,185,347.70 42,185,347.70

16,192,633.59 16,192,633.59 30,164,665.96 30,164,665.96

Long term borrowings from TBank

a) Trade receivables from customers on deferred instalment payment basis are charged
approximately the market rate of interest and hence the fair value approximates their
carrying values.

b) Long term borrowings from Bank of Bhutan are at floating rate of interest and hence the
fair value approximates their carrying values.

c) The management assessed that the fair values of remaining financial assets and liabilities
at amortised cost approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

d) The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is
determined using valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key assumptions used and
the impact of changes to these assumptions see (ii) above.

Note 37: Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (i.e. foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk).

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity
manages the risk and the impact of it in the financial statements.
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' Exposure arising

Measurement

Cash and cash equivalents, ? e 0
- : . ! Diversification of customer
Credit risk trade receivables, and other Ageing analysis b
financial assets. o
8y el Trade payables and other Aval}al?ﬂlty o commlttgd
Liquidity risk Y S Cash flow forecasts | credit lines and borrowing
financial liabilities T
facilities
Market risk - : Cash flow forecasts | Availability of committed
= Future commercial i S
foreign : & sensitivity LC facilities and
transactions ; ; S g
exchange analysis diversification of liability
Portfolio of loan contains
Market risk - Long-term  borrowings at St : fixed interest loans from
: : Sensitivity analysis : - :
interest rate variable rates various financial
institutions

(A) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities primarily trade and other receivables.

i) Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. The Company
regularly monitors its outstanding customer receivables. The Company has a detailed review
mechanism of overdue customer receivables at various levels within organization to ensure
proper attention and focus for realization.

The Company has two categories of trade receivables -

a) Customer to whom the vehicles are sold on deferred settlement terms.

b) Other than (a) above - All the sales are made on normal credit period of 30 days to 60

days.

The requirement for loss allowance is analyzed at each reporting date. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial
assets disclosed in Note 35: Fair value measurement. The Company does not hold collateral

as security.

(ii) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables

74

Loss allowance on January 1, 2023 52,878,100
Changes in loss allowance -
Loss allowance on December 31, 2023 52,878,100
RO
X4 )5)
x/ 57

STCBL

STCBL
iii) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s
finance department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds
are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Companies” Board of Directors
on an annual basis. The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore
mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. For banks
and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted.

Financial assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant credit risk.
Note 37: Financial risk management continued

(B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash

equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally performed in accordance
with practice and limits set by the Company.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

- Particulars - Less than1 yea;"::" : Mor;etal:an g ~ Total ;

31 December 2023
Long term borrowings and 24,924 985 84,081,385 109,006,371
interest*
Short term borrowings 365,016,947 - 365,016,947
Deferred rent = = =
Trade payables 172,685,797 - 172,685,797
Deposits 3,467,895 - 3,467,895
Other payables 4,958,750 - 4,958,750
Total non-derivative liabilities 571,054,374 84,081,385 655,005,759
31 December 2022
slongisimiboro s nes and 33,178,254 138,616,346 171,794,600
interest
Short term borrowings 351,977,659 - 351,977,659
Deferred rent = = =
Trade payables 91,851,340 - 91,851,340
Deposits 3,221,355 - 3,221,355
Other payables 35,759,033 - 35,759,033
Total non-derivative liabilities 515,987,641 138,616,346 654,603,987
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Note 37: Financial risk management continued
(B) Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The company is exposed to foreign currency risk as it maintains a foreign currency bank
account and has a foreign exchange receivable.

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed
in Nu. are as follows:

. 31 December 2023 | 31 December 2022
ke e IS

Particulars

Financial assets

31 December 2023 | 31 December 2021
BT T DT
Financial assets 852,373 137,144

Particulars

The receivable/ payable from/to India is in foreign currency (Indian Rupee) which does not
have foreign exchange fluctuation risk since Bhutanese Ngultrum (BTN) is pegged with
Indian Rupee (INR).

Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign
currency denominated financial instruments.

Change'in currency: __ Impact on profit before tax

76

Particulars exchange rate B :31v'December Bl December
' 2023 . 2022
USD sensitivity
Appreciation in Nu.* 5% - 17,461
Depreciation in Nu.* -5% - (17,461)
BDT sensitivity
Appreciation in Nu.* 5% 32,305 5,499
Depreciation in Nu.* -5% (32,305) (5,499)

* Holding all other variables constant

As value of Nu. is constantly equal to the INR, company is not exposed to any foreign currency
risk relating to amount receivables/ payable in INR.
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(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s main interest rate

risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash
flow interest rate risk.

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company’s financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

31 December 2023 | 31 December2022

Variable rate borrowings 109,006,371 79,994,419

(b) Sensitivity

Profit before tax is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of
changes in interest rates as below:

[Impact on profit before tax _
51 December2023 | 51 Decemberazz
Interest rate - increase by 0.5% : G 4,032) : (399,972) _
545,032 399,972

-' Partmu]ars

Interest rate — decrease by 0.5%

* Holding all other variables constant
(ii) Price risk
The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or

its issuer or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company does not have any financial asset investments which are exposed to price risk.

Note 38: Disclosure for employees benefit - defined benefit scheme (Gratuity)
. A Change in defined benefit obligation (DBOy = 31 December2023 31 December 2022

DBO at end of prior period 26,012,873.00 18,414,656
Current service cost 4,071,009.98 3,003,603
Interest cost on the DBO 1,784,323.98 1,392,546
Past service cost - plan amendments (4,443,773.12) (2,015,655)
Actuarial (gain)/loss - experience (7,902,474.96) 4,153,171
Actuarial (gain)/loss - demographic assumptions (910,358.74)
Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumptions 14,174,656.49 1,064,553
DBO at end of current period 32,786,256.63 26,012,874
60
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B. Statement of Profit & Loss

31 December 2023 = 31 December 2022

Current service cost 4,071,009.98 3,003,603
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 1,784,323.98 1,392,546
Cost recognized in P&L 5,855,333.96 4,396,149

C. Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI ) {31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability experience (7,902,474.96) 4,153,171

Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability assumption changes 14,174,656.49 1,064,553
Actuarial (Gain) or Loss Recognized via OCI at

Current Period End 6,272,181.53 w2172

D. Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position 31 December 2023 | 31 December 2022

Net. defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of prior 26,012,873.00 18,414,656
period
Current service cost 4,071,009.98 3,003,603
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 1,784,323.98 1,392,546
Amount recognized in OCI 6,272,181.53 5,217,724
Benefit paid directly by the company (4,443,773.12) (2,015,655)
Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of current

period 33,696,615.37 26,012,874

E. Expected benefit payments (undiscounted) for the
year ending

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Up to 1 year 6,309,348.06 2,160,241
Between more than 1 to 3 years 17,952,208.09 10,488,151
Between more than 3 to 5 years 25,368,756.20 14,909,564
Between more than 5 to 10 years 53,330,680.05 23,090,797
Over 10 years 117,581,721.63

(i) Expected employer contributions for the period ending 31 December 2023 N/A
(ii) Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 15.28 years (31 Dec 2022: 10.93 years)

(iii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

A. Discount rate 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Discount rate 7.50% 8%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase 31,355,174.67 (1,064,553)
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease 34,338,167.57 1,149,415

7 ‘ B. Salary escalationrate 31 December2023 | 31 December 2022

ry — o —— sl e
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase 34,375,094.88 2,416,634
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease 31,305,031.68 (2,106,326)

G Mortalvityirate

31 Dgcember 2023‘

| 31 Decembe;_2022
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: 100% of IALM (2012~ 100% of IALM
Mortality rate 14) (2012-14)
Effect on DBO due to 10% upward shift in mortality 32,741,978.23
curve
Effect on DBO due to 10% downward shift in 32,830,775.11
mortality curve
A 5D Employee turnoverrate < | 31 December2023 | 31 December 2022
Employee turnover rate 7.32% 5%

Effect on DBO due to 1% increase 32,076,594.47 323,349
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease 33,545,704.53 (360,589)

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plan the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most
significant of which are detailed below:

Interest rate risk:

The plan is exposed to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an
increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefits and will thus result in an increase
in the value of the liability.

Salary growth risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary
increase of the plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future
for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of
obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Liquidity risk:

This is the risk that the plan is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise
due to non-availability of enough cash/ cash equivalents to meet the liabilities or holding of
illiquid assets.

Demographic risk:

The company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in the valuation of liability.
Thus, the plan is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to
the assumption.

Asset liability mismatching or market risk:

The duration of the liability is longer than the duration of assets exposing the company to
market risk for volatilities/ fall in interest rate.
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Investment risk:

The plan is exposed to the probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the

expected return on any particular investment.

Note 38: Disclosure for employees benefit - defined benefit scheme (Travel allowance)

A. Change in defined benefit obligation (DBO) | 31 December2023 | 31 December 2022
DBO at end of prior period 2,730,885.00 820,298.00
Current service cost 334,310.51 481,858.00
Interest cost on the DBO 180,324.43 52,800.00
Actuarial (gain)/loss - experience (1,473,426.31) 1,556,912.00
Actuarial (gain)/loss - demographic assumptions 14,094.69 =
Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumptions 531,578.51 139,612.00
Benefits paid (653,118.56) (320,595.00)

DBO at end of current period 1,664,648.27 2,730,885.00

B. Statement of Profit & Loss 1 31 December 2023 = 31 December 2022
Current service cost 334,310.51 481,858
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 180,324.43 52,800
Cost recognized in P&L 514,634.94 534,658

C. Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI)

31 December 2023 |

31 December 2022

Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability experience (1,473,426.31) 1,556,912
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability assumption 139 612
changes 531,578.51 :
Actuarial (Gain) or Loss Recognized via OCI at
Current Period End (941,847.80) 1,696,524

D. Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position

31 December 2023 |

31 December 2022

Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of prior 820,298
period 2,730,885.00 i

Amount recognized in OCI (927,753.11) 1,696,524

Amount recognized in profit & loss 514,634.94 534,658

Benefit paid directly by the company (653,118.56) -320,595

Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of > 730.885
current period 1,664,648.27 i
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E. ~Expected benefit payments (unq?scqunted) for .31 becember 2023 31 Decem'b;'x" 2021
s ;.  theyearending i o i Ly : G
Up to 1 year 710,151.72 204,780
Between more than 1 to 3 years 1,849,056 47 678,410
Between more than 3 to 5 years 2,530,197.21 1,115,522
Between more than 5 to 10 years 4,396,233.54 2,126,179
Over 10 years 5,094,546.82

(i) Expected employer contributions for the period ending 31 December 2023 N/ A

(ii) Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 11.17 years (31 Dec 2022: 11.69
years)

(111) Slgnlflcant estimates: actuanal assumptions and sen51t1v1ty

" A. Discount rate

Discount rate
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease

31 December 2023

7.5%
1,610,374.20
1,723,135.47

31 December 2022
8%
(139,612)
152,190

B. Salary escalation rate

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Salary escalation rate 10.50% 6%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase 1,725,942.83 321,629
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease 1,607,085.21 (274,921)

e Mortality rate. -

Mortality rate

- 31 December 2023

100% of IALM

31 December 2022
100% of IALM (2012-

(2012-14) 14)
Effect on DBO due to 10% upward shift in 1,663,694.22 )
mortality curve
- e
Effect on DBO due to 10% downward shift in 1,665,607.74 "

mortality curve

D. Employee tumover rate

_Emplovee turnover rate

Effect on DBO due to 1% increase
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease

31 December 2023

7300

1,651,160.77
1,678,987.99

31 December 2021 _

5%
58,206
(65,353)

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plan the Company is exposed to a number of rlsks, the most
significant of which are detailed below:
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Interest rate risk:

The plan is exposed to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an
increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefits and will thus result in an increase
in the value of the liability.

Salary growth risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary
increase of the plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future
for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of
obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Liquidity risk:

This is the risk that the plan is not able to meet the short-term payouts. This may arise due to
non-availability of enough cash/ cash equivalents to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid
assets.

Demographic risk:

The company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in the valuation of liability.
Thus, the plan is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to
the assumption.

Asset liability mismatching or market risk:

The duration of the liability is longer than the duration of assets exposing the company to
market risk for volatilities/ fall in interest rate.

Investment risk:

The plan is exposed to the probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the
expected return on any particular investment.
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Note 38: Disclosure for employees benefit - defined benefit scheme (Transport Charge)

DBO at end of prior period

*A.Change in defined benefit obligation (DBO) | 31 December2023 = 31 December 2022

3,553,218.00 1,185,032

Current service cost 242,010.58 841,207
Interest cost on the DBO 244,116.86 59,746
Actuarial (gain)/loss - experience (2,254,597.86) 2,199,184
Actuarial (gain)/loss - demographic assumptions 43,054.41 -
Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumptions 52,348.55 144,454
Benefits paid (596,653.20) (876,405)
DBO at end of current period 1,283,497.34 3,553,218

- B. Stétement of Profit & Loss S 31 Décembér 2023 . 31 December 2022

Current service cost 242,010.58 841,207

Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 244,116.86 59,746

Cost recognized in P&L 486,127.44 900,953

C. Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI ) 31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability experience (2,254,597.86) 2,199,184

Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability assumption 144 454
changes 52,348.55 4

Actuarial (Gain) or Loss Recognized via OCI at (2,202,249.31) 2,343,638

Current Period End

Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of prior

- D. Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position

31 December 2022

period 3,553,218.00 1,185,092
Amount recognized in OCI (2,159,194.91) 2,343,638
Amount recognized in profit & loss 486,127.44 900,953
Benefit paid directly by the company (596,653.20) (876,405)
Cost of termination benefits
Net defined benefit asset/ (llablhty) at end of 3,553,218
current period 1,283,497.33
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E. Expected benefit payments (undiscounted) for the

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

year ending
Up to 1 year 693,361.47 376,656
Between more than 1 to 3 vears 1,913,052.30 1,584,218
Between more than 3 to 5 years 2.820,605.72 2,077,081
Between more than 5 to 10 years 4,943,763.79 3,146,006
Over 10 years 3,938,862.62
(i) Expected employer contributions for the period ending 31 December 2023 N/A

(ii) Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 10.22 years (31 Dec 2019:10.21 years)

A. Discount rate

Discount rate

Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease

(iii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

31 December 2023
7.5%
1,246,259.11
1,323,246.46

31 December 2022
8%
(144,454)
156,477

B. Carrier charges

Carrier charges
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease

31 December 2023

51%
1,327,759.09
1,241,668.86

31 December 2022
5%
332,976
/ (287,908)

C. Mortality rate

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Employee turnover rate
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease

: 100% of IALM 100% of IJALM
Mortality rate (2012-14) (2012-14)
Effect on DBO due to 10% upward shift in mortality 1,283,629.75
curve
Effect on DBO due to 10% downward shift in
mortality curve 1,283,365.66

D. Employee turnover rate 31 December 2023 : 31 December 2022

7.32%
1,290,200.93
1,276,437.96

5%
81,818
(92,525)

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plan the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most

significant of which are detailed below:
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Interest rate risk:

The plan is exposed to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an
increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefits and will thus result in an increase
in the value of the liability.

Salary growth risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary
increase of the plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future
for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of
obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Liquidity risk:

This is the risk that the plan is not able to meet the short-term payouts. This may arise due to
non-availability of enough cash/ cash equivalents to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid
assets.

Demographic risk: ;

The company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in the valuation of liability.
Thus, the plan is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to
the assumption.

Asset liability mismatching or market risk:

The duration of the liability is longer than the duration of assets exposing the company to
market risk for volatilities/fall in interest rate.

Investment risk:

The plan is exposed to the probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the
expected return on any particular investment.

Note 38: Disclosure for employees benefit - defined benefit scheme (leave)
A. Change in defined benefit obligation (DBO) 31 December 2023 = 31 December 2022

DBO at end of prior period - 4,420,625
Current service cost - 689,696
Interest cost on the DBO - 204,965
Actuarial (gain)/loss - experience ol s 2,294,056
Actuarial (gain)/loss - demographic assumptions . = 176,478
Benefits paid - (3,717,114)
DBO at end of current period - 4,068,706
N¢ A2

= \ | 7 /

ct % ‘/)
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B. Statement of Profit & Loss

| 31 December 2023 | 31 December 2022

Current service cost - 689,696
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) - 204,965
Re-measurement (gains)/ losses - 2,470,535

Cost recognized in P&L - 3,365,196

C. Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position

Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of prior -

o p 4,420,625
Current service cost = 689,696
Net interest on net defined benefit liability/ (asset) % 204,965
Amount recognized in profit & loss - 2,470,535
Benefit paid directly by the company = (3,717,114)
Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of current - 4.068.707

period g

D. Expected benefit payments (undiscounted) for the

year ending

380,585

Up to 1 year

Between more than 1 to 3 years 1,576,840
Between more than 3 to 5 years 2,176,910
Between more than 5 to 10 years 3,492,756

Over 10 years

(i) Expected employer contributions for the period ending 31 December 2023
(ii) Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation ... years (31 Dec 2022: 10.82 years)

(iii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
A. Discount rate 31 December 2023 | 31 December 2022

Discount rate 8.80%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase (176,478)
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease 191,346

B. Salary escalation rate

Salary escalation rate - 6%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase - 403,225
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease - (348,461)

C. Mortality rate 31 December 2023 | 31 December 2022
0,
Mortality rate F 100(;0;);113;“1\4
Effect on DBO due to 10% upward shift in mortality -
curve
Effect on DBO due to 10% downward shift in mortality B
curve

D. Employee turnover rate

31 December 2023 | 31 December 2022

/ Coe Ny - igp
X )
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Employee turnover rate = 5%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase - 61,759
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease - (69,284)

Note: The company did not carry out actuarial valuation for leave obligation due in change in policy,
i.e., not to accrue leave for future years.

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plan the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most
significant of which are detailed below:

Interest rate risk:

The plan is exposed to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an
increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefits and will thus result in an increase
in the value of the liability.

Salary growth risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary
increase of the plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future

for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of
obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Liquidity risk:

This is the risk that the plan is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise
due to non-availability of enough cash/ cash equivalents to meet the liabilities or holding of
illiquid assets.

Demographic risk:

The company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in the valuation of liability.
Thus, the plan is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to
the assumption.

Asset liability mismatching or market risk:

The duration of the liability is longer than the duration of assets exposing the company to
market risk for volatilities/ fall in interest rate.

Investment risk:

The plan is exposed to the probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the
expected return on any particular investment.
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Note 38: Disclosure for employees benefit - defined benefit scheme (Transfer grant)

A. Change in defined benefit obligation (DBO)

|| 31 December 2023

|| 31 December 2022

STCBL

DBO at end of prior period 2.717.161.00 820,298
Current service cost 332,161.94 481,858
Interest cost on the DBO 177,784.79 51,801
Actuarial (gain)/loss - experience (1,414,738.31) 1,569,220
Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumptions 531,578.51 139,549
Benefits paid (693,394.35) (345,565)
DBO at end of current period 1,650,553.58 2,717,161
B. Statement of Profit & Loss | 31 December 2023 ' 31 December 2022
Current service cost 332,161.94 481,858
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 177,784.79 51,801
Cost recognized in P&L 509,946.73 533,659
C. Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI ) 31 December 2023 = 31 December 2022
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability experience (1,414,738.31) 1,569,220
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability assumption changes 531,578.51 139,549
Actuarial (Gain) or Loss Recognized via OCI at 1.708.769
Current Period End (883,159.80) =
D. Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position 31 December 2023 | 31 December 2022
Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of prior 820,298
period 2,717,161.00 !
Current service cost 332,161.94
Net interest on net defined benefit liability/ (asset) 177,784.79
Amount recognized in OCI (883,159.80) 1,708,769
Amount recognized in profit & loss 509,946.73 533,659
Benefit paid directly by the company (693,394.35) (345,565)
Acquisitions credit/ (cost)
Cost of termination benefits
Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of current 2,717,161

period

2,160,500.31

X =) 71
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"_E. Expected benefit payments (und:@%cqt@nted) forthe |

year ending .

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Up to 1 year 664,859.59 189,958
Between more than 1 to 3 years 1,803,764.34 663,588
Between more than 3 to 5 years 2,484,905.08 1,100,700
Between more than 5 to 10 years 4,350,941 .41 211,357
Over 10 years 5,094,546.82

(i) Expected employer contributions for the period ending 31 December 2020 N/A

(ii) Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 11.30 years (31 Dec 2022: 11.79 years)

i

- Al Discount rafg

Discount rate

(iii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
b m e || 31 December 2023

| 31 December 2022

7.50% 8%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase 1,610,374.20 (139,549)
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease 1,723,135.47 152,126
B. Salary escalation rate 31 December 2023 = 31 December 2022
Salary escalation rate 10.50% 6%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase 1,725,942.83 321,499
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease 1,607,085.21 (274,791)

. C.Mortalityrate.
Mortality rate

Effect on DBO due to 10% upward shift in mortality
curve

Effect on DBO due to 10% downward shift in mortality
curve

100% of IALM
(2012-14)

1,663,694.22

1,665,607.74

w22 Pecamber D023

b ecamber 2022 |

100% of IALM
(2012-14)

=y o vy

, 77D, Employee turnover rate
Employee turnover rate

Effect on DBO due to 1% increase

Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease

7.32%
1,651,160.77
1,678,987.99

31 December 2023 ‘

31 Decemﬁé_r 2022
5%

55,461

(62,609)

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plan the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most

significant of which are detailed below:
Interest rate risk:

The plan is exposed to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an
increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefits and will thus resultin an increase

in the value of the liability.
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Salary growth risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary
increase of the plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future
for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of
obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Liquidity risk:

This is the risk that the plan is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise
due to non-availability of enough cash/ cash equivalents to meet the liabilities or holding of
illiquid assets.

Demographic risk:

The company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in the valuation of liability.
Thus, the plan is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to
the assumption.

Asset liability mismatching or market risk:

The duration of the liability is longer than the duration of assets exposing the company to
market risk for volatilities/ fall in interest rate.

Investment risk:

The plan is exposed to the probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the
expected return on any particular investment.

Note 39: Contingent liability

The company has no outstanding legal claims filed against the company.

No Note 41: Court cases filed against company's debtors.

SINi . Amount | '
0. (Nu.)

2,770,525.59

Clients

Mr. hjo Nidup(c/o
1 Choden Transport)

Year |l i ciiiinie  Status

Case registered at special bench on
23.11.22 and court proceedings
completed. Judgment Awaited

2 Mr. Khenrab Wangchuk 31,860,846.32 | 2023 | Case under arbitration

Mr. Phuntsho Tobden 8,885,706.87 | 2023 Case under arbitration

3
Wangyel
4 Mr. Lobzang Tshering 2,114,274.17 | 2023 Case in arbitration process
5 Mr. Ugyen Wangchuk 6,920,336.49 | 2023 Case in arbitration process
Mr. Karma Rinzin KRC 2,412,566.64 | 2022 | Case ongoing at court
6 Mr. Pema Tobgay 2,380,361.36 | 2022 | Case ongoing at court

Mr. Ngawang Tshering 2,103,695.83 | 2022 | Case ongoing at court

8 Mr. Pema Khenrab 18,518,920.55 | 2023

Case under arbitration

j : i \= 73
-X\ 0/
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9 Mr. Sonam Jamtsho 2,458,001.61 | 2022 | Case ongoing at court
Mr. Phajo Nidup(c/o 2,770,525.59 | 2022 | Case registered at special bench on
12 | Choden Transport) 23.11.22 and court proceedings
completed. Judgment Awaited
13 | Mr. Khenrab Wangchuk 31,860,846.32 | 2023 | Case under arbitration
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